MINUTES OF PORTLAND HANDWEAVERS GUILD BOARD MEETING May 23, 2019

Present: Dan Steves, President; Lynne Fitzsimmons, Workshop Chair; Ladella Williams, Exhibits and Rental Equipment Chair; Maggie Patterson, Director of Education; Janis Johnson, Director of Sales; Sue Walsh, Past President; Robin Korybski, Director of Member Services; Barbara McGaa, Director of Membership; Pat Zimmerman, Treasurer; Sylvia Emard, Newsletter Editor.

The meeting commenced at Multnomah Arts Center at 7:01 PM.

Robin had previously sent out the minutes for the April board meeting. Barbara moved to accept them and Maggie seconded. The minutes were approved.

Old business:

Janis has been working with the Gathering of the Guilds, which is looking at ways to set up a non-profit organization, although not a charity. The five member guilds have committed to spending \$300 to consult with a CPA about how to set up the organization. Janis asked for and received the board's approval to spend PHG's portion of \$60. The Gathering of the Guilds group is preparing to write up by-laws and operating procedures which will govern decision-making and splitting costs among the guilds. A chairperson, treasurer and other functions have been named and Janis will be the liaison to the Convention Center.

New business:

Ladella marked items in the closet which will be included in the silent auction of excess equipment at the June meeting. The Woolhouse 8-shaft table loom will go, as well the 36 inch Schacht rigid heddle and one Beka rigid heddle loom. One warping board will be put in the auction. Ladella will buy the J-made loom. Two spinning wheels will go in the auction, as well as one inkle loom. We will keep the Baby Wolf loom and Mountain loom, also the Rasmussen table loom. The triangle loom will be kept and offered rent-free, since Robin has a new book about it in the library. The Cricket rigid heddle and one Beka loom will be kept, as well as a 2-shaft loom donated with the condition that we not sell it. That loom will be lent out rent-free. We will keep the tapestry loom and the recently donated spinning wheel. We will keep the drum carders, two inkle looms and the marudai. The guild will ask Debbie Ellis to look over the good spinning wheel and drum carder and report on their condition.

Barbara reported on membership renewals. Amy will be adding a field to the member database to capture the fiscal year to which the members' payment applies. Some members have complained that they paid their dues but are unclear about which year is covered by the payment. Also, problems have occurred with members paying for memberships and workshops via PayPal. Members should get an email from Paypal confirming their purchase.

Pat presented the current year's and 2019/2020 budgets. There was discussion of whether next year's budget should show income from study groups, the retreat, and workshops, which

produced higher than expected income this year. Income and expenses for various line items were adjusted per the discussion. Pat thought there could be a slight shortfall next year. She will update the numbers and send out the new proposed budget for the coming year.

The June strawberry banquet was discussed. Assignments will be made for providing strawberries, cake, punch, setting up the room, etc.

Sue passed along Linda Gettmann's announcement of the ANWG annual meeting to be held in Prince George as well as the ongoing preparations for the 2021 conference in Salem.

Janis volunteered to be Director of Sales again.

Sue brought up a workshop policy issue regarding refunds for people who are unable to attend a workshop due to medical emergency and cancel at the last minute. It was decided that refunds should be issued if the workshop spots can be filled by others. We should have waitlists for workshop registrants.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 pm.

Respectively submitted, Sylvia Emard, Acting for Megan Rothstein, Secretary

PHG Policy on Workshops Approved on November 29, 2018

As a benefit to its members, PHG will sponsor workshops. Responsibility for administering workshops will rest with the Workshop Chairperson(s) as described in section 6 below.

1. Costs of Workshop Instructor to be covered by PHG. Payment due the instructor will be clarified through a contract between the instructor and PHG, executed by the instructor (or his/her/their designee) and the PHG President. PHG will pay for the instructor(s)'s teaching fees, lodging, meals, transportation as follows:

PHG will pay the instructor's rate as negotiated by the workshop chair.

PHG will offer a host home to the workshop instructor(s) if he/she/they reside more than 30 miles from the workshop venue, unless otherwise agreed. If no host home is available that meets the needs of the instructor(s), PHG may, at its discretion, reimburse the instructor for lodging at a local hotel up to a maximum of \$125 per night.

PHG will provide lunch for the guest lecturer, at his or her request, to a maximum of \$20 for each day that the instructor is leading the workshop. Other social activities are at the option of the workshop attendees.

PHG will pay mileage at the then-current IRS rate, unless otherwise agreed. PHG will pay for common carrier transportation at the coach-class rate; the instructor will be responsible for any upgraded transportation. PHG will reimburse the instructor for transportation subject to the instructor submitting a receipt for expenses.

Any materials costs should be paid separately by the workshop participants to the instructor.

2. Priority of PHG Members; Non-Member Enrollment. Anyone may sign up for workshops in priority order as follows. First priority to enroll in a PHG sponsored workshop will be given to PHG members. If there is space available within two (2) weeks of the workshop (or another date if one is listed in the workshop announcement) and if it is feasible for the potential enrollee to complete required pre-workshop tasks in time, individuals who are members of guilds within the Weaving Guilds of Oregon (WeGO) will be given second priority with no surcharge on a first-come, first served basis. If space still remains available, the Workshop Chair may open registration to non-members with a \$25 surcharge, also

on a first-come, first-served basis.

- 3. Benefits to the Workshop Chair and Host. The Workshop Chairperson will not pay workshop fees, but must pay the materials fee if participating. The President(s) will pay fees unless he/she/they are serving as the Chairperson for the workshop he/she/they wishes to take. The host of the workshop leader will be given a voucher \$25.00 per night of hosting applicable to the workshop fee. This voucher may be used by the host or, if the host has a family membership, anyone covered by the family membership, and is otherwise nontransferable. (Adopted November 3, 2005).
- 4. Recovery of Other Workshop Costs. Fees for the Workshop should be designed to recover costs of the instructor's fee, transportation, workshop fees of the Workshop Chair and host (if applicable), room rental (if applicable), risk, and a portion of administrative costs. PHG will not provide participants with complimentary snacks or beverages, nor include their cost in the workshop pricing structure. Attendees are free to bring their own food, snacks and beverages subject to approval by the instructor and consistent with any restrictions of the site.
- 5. Workshop Profits. The intent is for workshops to be self-supporting on the average over the PHG year rather than for each individual workshop to break even or earn a small profit. Any workshop profits will go to the PHG general fund; they are not earmarked to support future workshops.
- 6. <u>Duties and Responsibilities of the Workshop Chair</u>. The Workshop Chair is responsible for:

identifying possible workshop opportunities of interest to the general membership of PHG,

working collaboratively with other PHG leaders, particularly the person(s) responsible for monthly programs, to determine whether the proposed workshop leader can also lead the monthly program(s), negotiating any fees and contractual agreements with the instructor to be signed by the instructor and PHG President,

finding an appropriate workshop venue and handling any necessary contracts and fees as may be required for the room rental, determining the workshop fee to be paid by each enrollee that will cover all costs of the workshop (including any gratis workshops, risk, and indirect costs) and any deposit amount,

notifying the Treasurer of amounts due to the instructor and requesting a PHG check for paying the instructor's expenses,

advertising the workshop in the PHG newsletter and other appropriate outlets,

handling registration,

serving as an intermediary between the instructor and attendees to assure that the instructor has necessary student contact information, and that students have any pre-workshop preparatory information, collecting fees from students,

sending the invoice for room rental to the Treasurer, presenting payments to the instructor and workshop venue, getting workshop fees received from students to the Treasurer for deposit in the bank account,

giving any workshop materials fees collected to the instructor, notifying the Director of Education of any issues or concerns that (a) may require intervention or action beyond the authority of the Workshop Chairperson, such as approving additional speaker expense reimbursements or modifying a contract, (b) that have an adverse impact on the workshop offering, such as unexpected loss of site or low enrollment that could mean canceling the workshop, or (c) the Workshop Chair requires additional expertise or resources to resolve. reporting workshop income and expenses after the workshop in a close-out report to the Director of Education.

7. <u>Registration</u>, <u>deposits</u>, <u>and fees</u>. The Workshop Chair shall determine and announce a timeline for registration deadlines given the date(s) of the workshop and based on the type of workshop and needs of the workshop leader and students to prepare in advance of the workshop.

Workshop fees are due and payable in full at the time of registration, unless the logistics of the workshop require a different timeline publicized by the Workshop Chair. The Workshop Chair may agree to a later date if there are extenuating circumstances at his/her/their discretion, or to accommodate late enrollees such as non-members described in paragraph 2 above.

Materials fees assessed by the instructor on a per student basis are the responsibility of the enrollee unless specifically described otherwise in the contract between PHG and the instructor. The student will pay for any materials fees separately at the time listed in the workshop announcement. The workshop chair may collect them on behalf of the instructor.

A deposit paid by an enrollee to hold his/her/their place in the workshop will count

toward the enrollee's total workshop fee and is non-refundable. The deposit may be paid at any time after the workshop is announced. The balance of the workshop fee is due and payable on or before the date identified in the workshop announcement, with two (2) weeks prior a general guideline.

If an enrollee has not paid all fees in full, the workshop chair may, at his/her/their discretion, disqualify the enrollee from participation in the workshop.

- 8. <u>Cancellation</u>. An enrollee may cancel his/her/their enrollment with a full refund of amounts paid over the non-refundable deposit if notice of cancellation is received by the workshop chair at least one full month prior to the workshop, unless an earlier date is announced in the workshop announcement. Half of any workshop fees above the non-refundable deposit is refundable if cancellation is received by the workshop chair from one (1) month to two (2) weeks of the workshop. The workshop fees paid are non-refundable if cancellation is requested less than two (2) weeks prior to the workshop.
- 9. <u>Transfer of Enrollment.</u> Workshop enrollees who wishes to cancel may, however, transfer their enrollment (an)other person(s) provided that the enrollee notifies the workshop chair of the change and the workshop chair has no objection. If enrollment is transferred, the transferee is responsible for all workshop fees and any materials fees. If any fees have already been paid by the individual who cancelled, then the transferee is responsible for reimbursing the initial enroll.
- 10. <u>Disqualification of Benefit</u>. If an enrollee has habitually failed to pay as described in this policy, disrupted workshops, or otherwise abused the workshop benefit provided by PHG, then the Workshop Chair or any other PHG member may provide the Board with a complaint, information to support the complaint, and a recommendation to disqualify the enrollee from future benefits. The Board will allow the enrollee an opportunity to respond to the complaint, consider the complaint and response, and make its decision in writing to the enrollee.